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UNStudio’s Design Chosen
for the Singapore
University of Technology
and Design

UN THEEZEEFMERR5RITX
FRITRHEPRM

UNStudio, in collaboration with
DP Architects, has been selected
from a shortlist of five practices
to design Plot A of the Singapore
University of Technology and
Design (SUTD) campus.

Located on a site of 76,846 m*
and close to both Singapore’s
principal airport and the Changi
Business Park. the SUTD will be
Singapore’s fourth university.
The design for the campus offers
an opportunity to embrace
innovation and creativity
through a non-linear connective
relationship between students,
faculty, professionals and the
spaces they interact with.

The main aim is to create a
campus that celebrates both
teaching and learning in an
open and transparent way. The
network of horizontal, vertical
and diagonal vistas within the
double quadrant organization of
the campus enables professors,
students and faculty members to

see, meel and communicate with
one another through a network
of crossing points, presenting
opportunities for continuous
interaction and exchange. The
orientation and organization of
the campus is designed through
two main axes; the living and
learning spines which overlap to
create a central point, binding
together all corners of the SUTD.

UNIEES5DPEBHAIMES A
20 AR 1098 T BT BA M R 1% 3 50 17 o i 00
i, WEERBHMBERARSRITAE
(SUTD) A X3hsRf E& T

M REAR SR KE A EN
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EEAFEEE L E.
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Hiroshi Nakamura Designs
Launch Event Stage for
“LEXUS CT200h™
thit#RFR T “ESFER CT2000”
AtmeRE

LEXUS launched a new hybrid car
“CT200h™. A launch event for the
CT200h was held on January 12
at Tokyo International Forum
where fashion model Anne,
architect Hiroshi Nakamura and
musician Ryota Nozaki
(Jazztronik) appeared on a stage
and discussed the CT200h in
regards to its similarities with
their respective professions:
fashion, architecture and music.
Nakamura’s idea for the design of
the stage was found in the
compact but generous design of
the cockpit of CT200h and the
small but rich designs of Japanese
tearooms and townhouses.

HERFEHEENFZFREDNE
“CT200n” F 2011 F£1 B 12HERER
EFSWHRLETTHELRGS. N
ZRRE. ERTFANASHERRE
& B K (Jazztronik 5RBA) Ei5, $5ikT
CTeooh 5EZEB T (K%, BRAMNE
R) ZzEpEBZ L. EHSBEEHEBH
®it, fthiAk CT200n MBS H A%
ZEELRHRERIT EHEERE R EEN
DM EEZHMNES, MEXEERK
iRt R & MR R .

Massimiliano and Doriana
Fuksas Win Guosen
Securities Tower
Competition

O XFIEESZETR - BRF
HZHINE S mERIIEEIES
KEFITESRE

The project by Massimiliano and
Doriana Fuksas is born from the
intention to create a new concept
of vertical public space for the
tower. A three-dimensional void
zigzagging along the facades gives
a dynamic image to the building,
creating different public scenarios

This page, top: View of Event
Stage for LEXUS CT200h designed
by Hiroshi Nakamura. This page.
middle: Conceptual diagram of
SUTD. This page. bottom left:
lerial view of the SUTD campus.
p. 6. left above: General view of

Guosen Securities Tower. p. 6. left

below: Interior of Guosen
Securities Tower. p. 6, right:
Portrait of Fumihiko Maki. All
images on pp. 5-6 excepl as noted
courtesy of the architects

= 7= CT200h”
B AR R




for the offices and exploring the
relation between the podium and
the vertical section of the tower
with diagonals spaces and fluxes
that create a vertical tension

in the full height of the tower.
With its 220 m height space. the
tridimensional atrium will be the
highest lobby in the Shenzhen.
The public spaces. lobbies and
sky-gardens are interconnected
along the tridimensional void of
the atrium creating a stream of
light, images and activity that
are placed strategically in the
facades, which takes advantage of
the views and visibility according
to the urban context. The design
of Guosen Tower integrates

the values of connectivity and
trade fluxes of Shenzhen into

an innovative vision for a XXI
century tower.

SERFITES 2RI - W
BRMBSINEETRA—EABE,
ARRE|AN—NFRHTIL R0 @ 2 5.
RS ER, AR FEZE EF
4%, 2 ‘2" FRH#FEL, ER-EE
Hp =#rhmiE), HEFFR—HIER
AFHNSE BN, Z=#PEHEEY
HEEFENDAHIT; W, Z=HPE
EFASHBEERNEZERESLHE
ZEMELTE, EmFESS2RNES
EESCIEN IR

HHREATEEIL 220 m, BFHRK
FRHBRAPRENRE . &INFHREL.
REFMERERBHEERESD, 3
52 %, ZEZEFEE. BRIAR
EHAEMM—EHTHRE, 29/F0
My, HYhERAERAIEL, H5F

LT EENERSNERWR. BEiE
FREERRIBIITIESZ 5T, FH
ERRAMHERNTHROEFRESRE
HRF MRS TR NI, RILH —EEH
BEIFEFM 21 i E B,

announcement

Fumihiko Maki 2011 AIA
Gold Medal Winner

X EFR 2011 EFEERBHINS
2ER

Fumihiko Maki began his career
in the 1960s as a charter member
of the Metabolists — a group of
Japanese architects who believed
in the obsolescence of fixed forms
and the endless possibilities
offered by flexible and expandable
modular structures. Maki’s
approach to design is to assemble
disparate collages of forms
together in his buildings; abstract
volumes as well as elemental
shapes — spheres, cones, cubes.
cylinders. His buildings are
multifaceted juxtapositions of
both discordant unity and
synchronized disarray. The intent
in binding varied forms together
is to draw attention to the exposed
links between these ensemble
composition’s individual elements
and exploit them as dramatic and
revelatory markers of time and
place, full of immediacy and a bit
of whimsy. Maki is the 67th AIA
Gold Medalist. He joins the ranks
of such visionaries as Thomas
Jefferson, Frank Lloyd Wright,
Louis Sullivan, Renzo Piano. 1.M.
Pei, Cesar Pelli and Santiago
Calatrava.

HMXEZF 20 42 60 FRFF gL,
BAEARNRT FHRRGED" Meln
MAZ—. HHERENEE S ERERE RN
BAEERX, BEXAITELMTY RAOE
HALEN, PDORSHEAF XM LR A6
Mo BRAIRITFEAPME S S Fh AR
REMBHAERARNK; MAEFERAMER
FARFEARTUARAR, BIANERE. B,
VHBRAEE. HREAEEENR
ZRRGER, BEFAMERRRLEE—
g, XREXLFHERHELFE. HEK
BRItZAKREZAE R ETES, &

ARETHRMRER TR B HNEREIRR
T, FAKRFLREREIMEMBRE, R
T ER MR A BB TR E R .
HMXEREXERAMZERSRE 67 BE
E. HRRZMNBRARMEELEDH - &
Fh. BET - FIRE - B BN
FX. B - BT, MEE. FmiE - M
BHEMHITE - AR

LEAF Awards 2011
2011 F B BX By IR TR LR 2R

The Emirates Glass LEAF Awards
honor the architects designing
the buildings and solutions that
are setting the benchmark for the
international architectural
community. The awards are open
to all individuals and
organizations that have made an
outstanding contribution to the
world of architecture. Previous
winners include Zaha Hadid,
David Chippertield, SOM, Steven
Holl and Terry Farrell.

Fo] BK 1 B FE S M R T PR RO L 55
BAH, SEZERABRNRITHEHELR
Wb SRS T FRIARS . R IAE @ AT
BEHUTU LR D AMALR. &
BAREEEEIR - BEE. K2 - &
EIERIE. SOMBHIMBEFZFT HiiF>C- &
IRFZERG - SAER.

Host organization: Arena
International Events Group. John
Carpenter House, John Carpenter
Street, London EC4Y 0AN, UK
Registration deadline: May 15
email: suzanneellingham@arena-
international.com

url: www.leaf-awards.com

competitions

One Prize 2011: Water as
the Sixth Borough

2011 £ “One Prize” &3 ik
KB AALIER

The open international design
compelition is asking for proposals
to create New York City’s

“blue network™ by expanding
waterborne transportation and by
linking the five boroughs with a
series of green transit hubs which
incorporate electric passenger
ferries, water taxis, bike shares,
electric car-shares and electric
shuttle busses which should also
provide in-water recreation. water-
oriented educational and cultural
activities and climate resilience;

and to further propose a design
for the clean tech expo, E3NYC in
2014.

TS R R ERATEERR, &
HES AEAATRIE— R REHRF
MZBIRA, HRESHEEZETIR (8
EHRHEEER. KEME. ZHATE.
HABIREMEHNALRE) , Al
BAATHKREMALZ, ME ‘BEeX
R, RESUKEAN D XN ER.
[EIR, ZKETARZIBIREE &K R K.
BEMXENNINEE, HABRAES
B&MH. B, ERRNBTEFRZ—H
2014 FiESERE LS (EBNYC) M
NI HR.

Host organization: Terreform
ONE, 33 Flatbush Ave. 7th Floor,
Brooklyn . NY 11217, USA
Registration deadline: April 30
Submission deadline: May 31
email: info@oneprize.org

url: www.oneprize.org

Barcelona 2011
— Tower in Gothic Quarter
EEZHP 2011:. FHREXKRS

Spain has always been an
important tourist destination in
Europe. As a result, hostels have
emerged, providing low cost,
clean, and above all well-located
accommodation in key locations
popular with tourists. The
challenge of this competition
consists of designing a 100 m tall
tower-hostel that includes
relaxation areas and stores. A site
has been chosen for the
development of the project in the
heart of the Gothic Quarter,
opposite Barcelona Museum of
Contemporary Art.

PRHESF [ 3R 2 B 2 2 A BRI S
e XFIRENIEME, FHFUAHTHER.
WEHEmMAZHEERL. RRERAR
R —EEREE 100 m S RIkE, BK
BRANANE LB SN BEETE
M. MEIEIFEES BRBEFHFXH O
fEithws, SEEZRBURZAEYIERE
b=
Host organization: Arquitectum,
José Del Llano Zapata 331 Of. 201
Miraflores, Lima 18, Peru
Registration deadline: March
31
Submission deadline: April 15
email: barcelona@arquitectum.
com
url: www.arquine.com



Feature:

Novartis Campus
T8
HERE

In Basel, Switzerland, there is an architectural wonderland called
the Novartis Campus. It is the base of Novartis International AG,
a multinational pharmaceutical company. The campus has been
featured in several architectural magazines, including a+u, which
have introduced buildings by Diener & Diener, Peter Mirkli and
SANAA. There are also buildings by Rafael Moneo and Fumihiko
Maki, completed last year, and buildings by Yoshio Taniguchi,
David Chipperfield, Tadao Ando and Frank O. Gehry, completed
this year. Buildings by Alvaro Siza and Eduardo Souto de Moura
are scheduled for completion next year. Unsurprisingly, in

view of the international prominence of the architects who

were invited to participate, the quality of the architecture is
superb. The campus itself has been designed from corner to
corner, including the squares, streets and gardens. However, the
campus is not a place for the exhibition of architecture, like an
exposition or a theme park like Disneyland. It consists of offices
and laboratories for the people who work there.

The site of the Novartis Campus was originally an industrial
complex, and it has seen continuous development since the

late nineteenth century. The restructuring plan, launched about
ten years ago, is based on a grand vision of the transformation
of this production site into a “Campus of Knowledge™. In this
issue, we provide an overview of the Novartis Campus of 2010,
together with in-depth introductions to the individual works

of architecture. The photographs were taken this July. Vittorio
Magnago Lampugnani, one of the building architects and the
master planner of the Novartis Campus, contributed an essay
about the overall urban planning. This issue also illustrates the
history of the site and the landscaping, artistic, and ecological
aspects of the campus.

The Novartis Campus has not been completed. As a part of a
multi-dimensional company strategy including architecture,
landscaping and sustainability, it will develop further. What does
it have to tell us about the possibilities of a new workplace?
(atu)

EREMEER, A4 SBEET , HREFE. %ERX2HSEER
B ATMH LR, B, RONSHNRATESRT. K8 DEH
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aru ER) BTTEENE. ZF, SRRRNER - BEREMEE R
MEATEF 2000 £ T; ANF4E. AP - HFEIHERE. REREMHZ
® - ZRMNRAERNT 2010 £EE; TMARRLE - BILHNXERRS - &
- ERFRSTHORATIT 2011 FRT. FEESR, mXE—HEs
ERFEENEAATEMET, BERNFERABE—RIOEN. BRNES
MEEHZIEORL, BEFRENT . HEREE. AT, SEERET2
BAMES, UARMTREEBHENEEERD, TeNiEtRTARMNN
NEFERE.

EHREMRIEI TR, GEF 10 HETEN, FEESE, HEAA
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MEBRAAET 2010 £7 B. AXERAEALGNRATETER - 3RT
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Essay:

From St. Johann Works to Novartis Campus

Walter Dettwiler

wX:
WE - AT EEEE
KA - BESEE

Around 1850, the area just outside Basel was still completely
rural. Basel was enclosed by the city wall, which separated the
town from the surrounding countryside. Today’s built-up areas
St. Johann, Klybeck and Rosental were only sparsely populated.
Ten years later rapid development took place, triggered by the
chemical industry.

With the exception of sulphur manufacture, industrial chemistry
started out as dye production. In 1856, the Englishman William
Henry Perkin succeeded in synthesizing a dye for the first

time — quite by chance. His discovery signalled the end of the
traditional, largely plant-based textile dyestuffs, and launched
gold fever in Europe: every colour specialist in dyestuffs and
fabric printing tried to discover similar substances or at least to
obtain the formula. As early as 1859, the silk dyer Alexander
Clavel began to manufacture synthetic dyes in Basel, having
obtained a licence to produce dyestuffs through his family
connections with a French manufacturer. In the 1860s other
companies began producing artificial dyes in Basel.

Chemische Fabrik Kern & Sandoz: A Fabulous Beginning
In 1886, the Chemische Fabrik Kern & Sandoz started its
production in the northwest part of the city. Like the other

dye factories, it was buill outside the former Basel residential
quarter on an approximately 11,000 square meter lot. At the
time it was not known that the new factory and its neighbours
were occupying grounds that the Celts had settled between 150
and 80 BC. This settlement had reached a maximum extent of
fifteen hectares.

The factory of the chemist Alfred Kern and the salesman
Edouard Sandoz consisted of an office building with an adjoining
laboratory, three connected sawtooth-roofed production
buildings, and a boiler house with a twelve-horsepower steam
engine. Unlike the Basel chemical factories in the early years,
the new company enjoyed dynamic growth from the very
beginning. Ten years after the factory’s foundation, its grounds
had expanded to over 63,000 square meters.

World War I: Takeoff at the St. Johann Works

When World War [ broke out in 1914, there was no indication
that the Basel dyestuffs factories would soon be making record
profits. Only with hindsight can we see that the unparalleled
boom during the war years was a logical consequence. Since
the dominant German competition disappeared, overnight the
Basel chemical factories became the main suppliers for the
English textile industry, the market leader at the time. In 1914
the turnover of the Chemische Fabrik vormals Sandoz, as the
company was then known, was just 6 million Swiss francs.

By 1916 it had already reached 29.5 million, growing in 1918
to 37 million francs! Thanks to the sensational increase in
business, a far-reaching modernization and expansion of the
production apparatus was implemented during World War [ at
the St. Johann Works, which was extended from the 1920s to
the 1930s. The old sawtooth-roofed buildings gave way to multi-
story manufacturing locations in which vertical operation was
implemented for the first time. According to a contemporary

10
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Swiss architecture magazine, these new industrial buildings
took into account “the demands of our time”, because they
fulfilled “in reference to their exterior the striving for beauty.
and in reference to their interior, the desire for practicality.”
These were the industrial buildings of Ernst Eckenstein, who
was the house architect of the company from 1915 until World
War II. His last project on the St. Johann grounds was the
administration building designed by Wilhelm Brodbeck and Fritz
Bohny (Building 200). This triangle-shaped building. which was
completed in 1939, was extended to form a rectangle through
the addition of two wings after World War I1.

The 1950s and 1960s: The Boom Years of Buildings

The 1950s and 1960s were boom periods when the Basel
chemical groups grew rapidly. The pharmaceuticals divisions
developed into each company’s largest business. From 1950 to
1969 the group turnover of Sandoz AG grew from 278 million
to 2.5 billion Swiss francs. The appearance of the St. Johann
Works changed fundamentally and at breakneck speed: the
area was consolidated, unused lots were built upon, and old
buildings were torn down and replaced with modern high-rises.
In 1956. some 20 million Swiss francs per year was expended
for only the most urgent needs, but by 1960 the building
investments had doubled and in 1965 they rose to 80 million
francs per year. In 1960, construction was begun on Area 5.
The office and laboratory Building 503 was built here in two
stages between 1961 and 1969 by Burckhardt Architekten and,
at a height of seventy-seven meters, was extraordinary by Swiss
standards. In 1965 the Burckhardt Architekten-planned offices
of the Building 202 were completed: the structure today called
Forum 2 was supposedly the first Basel industrial building to
be built from prefabricated parts. In the same year the new
restaurant for factory personnel run by Conrad Miiller and his
co-worker, Guido Doppler, went into business. In 1969 Sandoz
finally took over the neighbouring dye manufacturer, Durand &
Huguenin, and the surface area of about 29,000 square meters
this accrued rounded off the St. Johann grounds in a useful
fashion. In the 1970s the last significant aboveground buildings
in the Basel Sandoz Works were built by Burckhardt Architekten
and Burckhardt + Partner: in 1973 the laboratory Building 360
and the office high-rise Building 210, and in 1976 the research
spaces of the Building 386.

From Building Slump to Campus Kickoff

With the advent of the oil crisis in 1973, the long period of
economic boom came to an end and gave way to an economic
situation that was determined by much shorter upward and
downward swings. As a consequence of the recession, Sandoz
massively curtailed group-wide investments in buildings,
facilities, and real estate beginning in 1975. This put a substantial
brake on the formerly busy construction developments at the
St. Johann Works. In the 1980s, investment activities started

up again, whereby modernization of production facilities and
projects for environmental protection and security took centre
stage. The only “visible” new construction on the St. Johann
grounds until the merger in 1996 from which Novartis emerged
was the Building 25. This building, which went into operation in
1994, served the production of prioritized active pharmaceutical
ingredients. The renovation and reconstruction of the Building
200 - today called Forum 1 - was completed in 2002, and

at the end of this reconstruction phase the inner courtyard

of the building was also redesigned. These last projects were
simultaneously the starting point for the redesign of the entire
St. Johann grounds into a “Novartis Campus of Knowledge”.
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Walter Dettwiler (horn in 1960) is director of the Novartis company archive.
He studied history and philosophy. and has worked at the Schweizerische
Landesmuseum in Zurich as well as the Historisches Museum in Basel. In
addition, he has been active as a freelance historian.




1: Gasworks and factory facilities by
Durand & Huguenin and Sandoz &
Cie. The photograph was taken from
an altitude of 450 m_from the balloon
Urania on June 16. 1895.

2: Aerial photograph. between 1914
and 1920.

3: Aerial photograph with the

St. Johann grounds in the left
background. ca. 1926

1: Aerial photograph, 1936.

5: Partial view of the St. Johann

grounds. aerial photograph. September

1958.
6: Aerial photograph, 1995.
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